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The Laverty-Martindale House is a two-story clapboarded structure of Italianate design.
A veranda wraps around the front and sides of the house. The supports consist of paired
pencil-thin columns on high, blocky pedestals with an eave bracket over each column.
Thin corner pilasters frame the front (west) facade which features a large, simple,
double door with rectangular transom, and two floor-to-ceiling windows on the first
floor. The window lintels are supported by small brackets. Double eave brackets with
pendants decorate the entablature, A rectangular cupola surmounts the shallow-pitched
hip roof. The cupola has an arcade of three round-arched windows on Doric piers on

the front and four on each side with single eave brackets enriching the entablature.

A low, hipped roof covers the two-story back wing.

The first substantial rise in the property tax for the two lots on which the Laverty-
Martindale House is located occurred in 1861.1 Therefore, the house had probably been
erected by that time. The contract with the builders, Richard Moffatt and Son, was
cancelled in 1863. However, in 1868, when the Martindales were negotiating to buy the
house, the front part of the second floor was not yet completed.2 The first floor plan
is typical of the period. Front and back parlors along the south side of the house
parallel a long hall (with curved staircase) along the north side which leads to the
dining room. The kitchen (behind the dining room) and the master bedroom (behind the
back parlor) are separated by the service stairs and a pantry. To the east of the
kitchen is the rear shed which housed a workshop, the water closet, and the cistern.
The outside walls of the parlors are twelve inches thick to accommodate disappearing
blinds on the windows and round-arched niches flanking the fireplace in the north parlor.
This simply carved, marble fireplace is the only original mantel extant in the house.

A built-in breakfront with glass doors above and cupboards below graces the west wall
of the old dining room.

In 1883-1884, the north wing was extended five feet north. A brick chimney and fire-
place flanked by French windows was added to the dining room which after 1906 became
the library (the old master bedroom was converted into the dining room). A "modern
marbleized mantel" decorated the second floor fireplace in the new wing.3 The Martin-
dale's son, Stephen IV, lived in this bedroom until his first child was born in 1888.

After Stephen Martindale III and his wife died in the winter of 1905-1906, the house

was modernized. A sleeping porch was added above the east entry porch and dormers were
added onto the rear shed; central heating, a modern bathroom, and electric lighting
replaced the old stoves, water closet, and gas lights. The fruit cellar in the basement
was converted into a laundry. The partition between the front and back parlors, includin
its sliding doors, was removed and the woodwork in the upstairs bedroom was painted white
(the rest of the woodwork retains its dark stain and hand graining). Since these altera-
tions, no significant changes in the character of the house have occurred.

The house is painted colonial yellow with white trim, green blinds, and red doors as a
picturesque allusion to the autumn color of hard-maple trees in New England.4 A two-
story, frame barn sits to the northeast of the house. It was built in 1886 to house a
storeroom, and a studio for a daughter who was an artist.> A wooden fence, built in
1972 and similar to the 19th century fence, encloses the lot.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Laverty-Martindale House is significant architecturally as a fine, relatively
unaltered example of the frame Italianate house and historically as the home of early
settlers of La Crosse and prominent businessmen in the early history of the area.

In his discussion of the origins of Percy Dwight Bentley's early Prairie School houses,
H. Allen Brooks uses the "four-square'" Laverty-Martindale House as '"a splendid example
of the type of residential construction being done in the mid-nineteenth century."l

On December 27, 1859 Richard Moffatt and Son (Richard R. Moffatt) contracted with Thomas

and Maria Laverty to build a house for them.

Cash payments were to be made as work

progressed over sixty weeks with a transfer of five acres of land when the work was

complete.

Thomas Laverty was a sailor from New Brunswick.

The Moffatts were English emigrants who called themselves "mechanics."?2

He moved to New York where he married

his wife Maria before moving on to Milwaukee in the late 1840's and then to La Crosse.
In 1859 he was renting a store in La Crosse from I. Munson Hill, Stephen Martindale's
~ brother-in-law, who lived in Beloit at the time.3

on April 18, 1861 and returned home a disabled veteran in August, 1863.4

Laverty enlisted in the Union Army

On November 11,

1868 the Lavertys sold their house and shortly thereafter returned to the east.

Stephen Martindale III, his wife, Katharine Howard Martindale, and their children were

the next occupants of the house.

In 1849 Stephen Martindale IIT went west to Racine

from his home in Wallingford, Vermont after graduating from Middlebury College and the

National Law School in New York.
firm, Durand and Hill.

Five years later he came to La Crosse.

In Racine he worked for his brother-in-law's lumber
He formed a business

partnership with Albert W. Pettibone and the two men built a double house together.5

Then Martindale returned to Vermont to claim his bride.
pursued several business interests.

Falls.
Army.

Martindale and his partner

In the late 1850's they owned a mill in Black River
In the Civil War Martindale served as a colonel and aide-de-camp for the Union

In the 1880's he bought the G. R. Montague Agency of Northwest Mutual Life and

devoted his time thereafter to insurance and loans.

Meanwhile his son, Stephen IV (b. August 21, 1859) had married Sophie Rosenblatt whom
he met at Beloit College in 1883 and received his law degree at the University of Wiscon-

sin in 1886.

business after he had stepped in to help and found it to his 1liking.
elder Martindales had died, Stephen IV moved his wife and three children into the family

home.

in the Laverty-Martindale house.

He practiced law in La Crosse for five years and then joined his father in
In 1906, after the

His daughter, Katharine, continued in the insurance business and still resides
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